
                          STATE OF FLORIDA
                DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

SHARON MORAND,                   )
                                 )
     Petitioner,                 )
                                 )
vs.                              )    CASE NO.  86-3521
                                 )
NATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INC.,       )
                                 )
     Respondent.                 )
_________________________________)

                         RECOMMENDED ORDER

     Pursuant to notice, a final hearing in the above-styled matter was held on
April 21, 1987, in Ocala, Florida, before Joyous Parrish, a duly designated
Hearing Officer of the Division of Administrative Hearings.  The parties were
represented at the hearing as follows:

     For Petitioner:  Sharon Morand
                      Post Office Box 4756
                      Ocala, Florida  32678-4756

     For Respondent:  Bruce R. Kaster, Esquire
                      Post Office Box 3310
                      Ocala, Florida  32678

              BACKGROUND AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS

     On September 9, 1985, Sharon Morand filed a complaint of discrimination
with the Florida Commission on Human Relations against National Industries, Inc.
(hereinafter "National").  The complaint alleged that National unlawfully
terminated her from employment and discriminated against her by reason of her
marital status.  The Commission conducted its investigation and held a fact
finding hearing.  Ultimately, the Commission entered a determination of "cause".
A timely Petition for Relief was then filed when efforts to conciliate the
complaint proved unsuccessful.  The case was forwarded to the Division of
Administrative Hearings for formal proceedings.

     At the final hearing Petitioner testified on her own behalf and presented
the testimony of three witnesses.  The Respondent presented seven witnesses.
The Petitioner presented one exhibit, the Respondent presented five exhibits,
and the parties jointly presented one exhibit.  All exhibits were admitted into
evidence.

     After the hearing, both parties filed Proposed Recommended Orders.  These
have been carefully considered in the preparation of this Recommended Order and
specific rulings on the Proposed Findings of Fact are included in the attached
Appendix.  Petitioner also submitted a "Rebuttal of Proposed Findings of Facts."
This "Rebuttal" was not timely received and has not been considered since there
is no statutory or rule authority for such a rebuttal document.



                              ISSUE

     The central issue in this case is whether Respondent violated Subsection
760.10(1), Florida Statutes by terminating Petitioner's employment because of
her marital status.

                          FINDINGS OF FACT

     Based upon the testimony of the witnesses and the documentary evidence
received at the hearing, I make the following findings of fact:

     1.  Sharon Morand was hired by National Industries, Inc. on July 14, 1985,
to work as an assembly line person in the manufacture of doors.

     2.  Petitioner resided approximately six blocks from the National
Industries plant site.

     3.  At the time of the hiring of Petitioner, her husband, Robert Morand,
was also employed by National.

     4.  Robert Morand was employed in an area of the plant different from the
one in which his wife worked.  Robert Morand had been employed by National for
some time prior to March, 1985.

     5.  As a part of his employee benefits Robert Morand received a group
insurance protection plan with an effective date of May 1, 1985.  This plan
indicated Mr. Morand's wife to be Sharon Morand.

     6.  National employees made allegations of sexual harassment, rudeness,
obscene language, threats, and potential violence against Robert Morand.

     7.  To dispel the trouble National perceived Robert Morand to be,
Respondent elected to offer Robert Morand either voluntary layoff or involuntary
termination.  It was hoped that the elimination of Robert Morand from the plant
would ease employee concerns.

     8.  On or about August 23, 1985, Robert Morand voluntarily agreed to be
laid off from his employment at National.

     9.  At the time of his layoff, Robert Morand was advised not to return to
the plant property.  While it is uncertain how many times Mr. Morand returned,
it is clear he returned to the site on at least one occasion between August 23
and August 26, 1985.

     10.  On Monday, August 26, 1985, Officer Suess of the Ocala Police
Department was summoned to the National plant site and was requested to be
present during the termination of an employee.  Officer Suess was requested to
be there because National expected some unspecified problem as a result of the
termination.

     11.  The Petitioner was brought to the office in the presence of Officer
Suess, Lee Rector, and Jack Knight.  Petitioner was advised by Rector that her
employment was being terminated due to her relationship with Robert Morand.

     12.  On August 26, 1985, Sharon Morand was a probationary employee of the
company who had performed all of her job duties in an acceptable manner.



     13.  At the time of her termination National knew that Sharon Morand was
the wife of Robert Morand.

     14.  National elected to terminate Petitioner to eliminate the likelihood
that Robert Morand would be on or near company property.

     15.  At the time of Petitioner's termination she was earning $4.05 per hour
and working a 40 hour week.

     16.  Subsequent to her termination, Petitioner was employed by Norell
Services, Inc.  While with Norell, she earned a total in wages, tips and other
compensation of $113.20.

     17.  During 1986, Petitioner was employed by UpJohn Health Care Services,
Inc. and earned a total in wages, tips and other compensation of $585.20.

     18.  Petitioner has been employed by Sears, Roebuck and Company since April
14, 1986, and has earned a total in wages, tips and other compensation in the
amount of $3,316.41.

     19.  The total amount of unemployment compensation Petitioner received
subsequent to her termination from National was $414.00.

     20.  Petitioner was unable to work due to illness or family illness during
the period since termination from National for a period of nine (9) weeks.

     21.  Since Petitioner had not worked for National for three months prior to
her termination, she was not eligible for any of the group insurance benefits
afforded a permanent employee of the company.  Consequently, lost benefits have
not been addressed in these findings.

                     CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

     22.  The Division of Administrative Hearings has jurisdiction over the
parties and the subject matter of these proceedings.

     23.  Section 760.10(1)(a) Florida Statutes provides that it is an unlawful
employment practice for an employer:

          (a) To discharge or to fail
          or refuse to hire any
          individual, or otherwise to
          discriminate against any
          individual with respect to
          compensation, terms,
          conditions, or privileges of
          employment, because of such
          individual's race, color,
          religion, sex, national
          origin, age, handicap, or
          marital status.

While this section must be afforded liberal construction in accordance with
Section 760.01(3) Florida Statutes, such construction must take into account the
plain and ordinary language utilized by the legislature.  St. Petersburg Bank
and Trust Company v. Hamm, 414 So.2d 1071 (Fla. 1982).  It is significant to
note, that the chapter and rules promulgated under it do not define "marital



status."  Moreover, there is a dearth of case law clearly and consistently
setting forth that term's meaning.

     24.  In employment cases where an individual alleges disparate treatment
because of marital status, such individual has the initial burden of
establishing a prima facie case of discrimination by a preponderance of the
evidence.  If the Petitioner succeeds in proving a case of discrimination, the
burden then shifts to the employer to articulate some legitimate - non-
discriminatory - basis for the treatment afforded the employee.  Texas Depart.
of Community Affairs v. Burdine, 101 S.Ct. 1089, 1093 (1981).

     25.  In the case at issue, the Petitioner failed, as a matter of law, to
establish that she was terminated because of her marital status.  Whether she
was married or not played no part in the Respondent's decisions to hire and then
terminate Petitioner.  The bulk of the credible evidence established that
National terminated Petitioner because it believed Robert Morand would continue
coming to the plant to see Petitioner.  National had a legitimate interest in
protecting company property and employees from Robert Morand.  While this action
would seem unfair to Sharon Morand, even "unfair" action is not an automatic
violation of Section 760.10(1)(a) Florida Statutes.  The Petitioner did not
establish that her marital status was the motivating factor in the Respondent's
action.  National had a legitimate business concern which it resolved in what
appeared to it to be the most effective and efficient manner.  That such
efficiency proved to be the fairly drastic measure of terminating Petitioner
does not, absent more, constitute a violation of Chapter 760.

     26.  In the few states which construe "marital status" to include the
identity or situation of the spouse, the public policy for doing so is to
protect the marriage union.  But even under such a public policy rationale,
discrimination on the basis of "marital status" would only occur in those
circumstances where but for the marital relationship the complained of action
would not have taken place.  See Thompson v. Board of Trustee, School District
No. 12, Harlem, Blaine County, 627 P.2d 1229 (Mont. 1981).  In the case at issue
National would have terminated the Petitioner had she not been married to Robert
Morand.  It was not the Petitioner's status as married or unmarried that
motivated her termination.  National believed that the presence of Sharon
Morand, married or unmarried, increased the likelihood of the presence of Robert
Morand.  Consequently, under the most liberal interpretation of "marital status"
Petitioner failed to establish a prima facie case of discrimination within the
meaning of Section 760.10(1)(a) Florida Statutes.

     Based on the foregoing, it is

     RECOMMENDED:

     That the Florida Commission of Human Relations enter a Final Order
dismissing the Petition for Relief and denying all relief sought by the
Petitioner.



     DONE and RECOMMENDED this 19th day or May, 1987, in Tallahassee, Florida.

                              ___________________________________
                              JOYOUS D. PARRISH
                              Hearing Officer
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              The Oakland Building
                              2009 Apalachee Parkway
                              Tallahassee, Florida  32301
                              (904) 488-9675

                              Filed with the Clerk of the
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              this 19th day of May, 1987.

         APPENDIX TO RECOMMENDED ORDER, CASE NO. 86-3521

     Rulings on Findings of Fact submitted by Petitioner:

     1.  Paragraph 1 is accepted to the extent confirmed by testimony of Officer
Suess as set forth in Findings of Fact Paragraphs 10 and 11.
     2.  Paragraph 2 is accepted and addressed in Finding of Fact paragraph 12.
     3.  Paragraph 3 is rejected as unnecessary.  The reference to "Mr. Morand's
rebuttal" is unclear since this case did not address Mr. Morand's termination
from employment.
     4.  Paragraph 4 is rejected as immaterial and/or irrelevant. As a matter of
law, National was not required to show good cause for termination of
Petitioner's employment.  The sole issue in this cause was whether National
violated Florida law by terminating Petitioner for a discriminatory reason ie.
her marital status.  Portions of Paragraph 4 are addressed in Findings of Fact,
Paragraphs 5 and 13.
     5.  Paragraph 5 is rejected as unsubstantiated hearsay.  No weight has been
given inferences regarding a restraining order.
     6.  Paragraph 6 is accepted to the extent addressed in Findings of Fact
Paragraphs 11, 13 and 14.

     Rulings on Findings of Fact submitted by Respondent:

     1.  Paragraph 1 accepted in Findings of Fact Paragraphs 10 and 11.
     2.  Paragraph 2 accepted in Finding of Fact Paragraph 15.
     3.  Stipulated by the parties and accepted in Finding of Fact Paragraph 13.
     4.  As to first sentence, Paragraph 4 accepted in Finding of Fact Paragraph
4.  The balance of Paragraph 4 is rejected as unsupported by the evidence.
While it is certain that Petitioner and Robert Morand were divorced and then
remarried, the record is uncertain as to the true time frame.
     5.  Relevant points addressed in Paragraph 5 accepted in Finding of Fact
Paragraph 6.
     6.  Paragraph 6 is rejected as hearsay and unsupported by the record.
Relevant points addressed in and accepted in Finding of Fact Paragraph 7.
     7.  Paragraph 7 is rejected as irrelevant.  Relevant points addressed in
and accepted in Findings of Fact Paragraphs 6 and 7.
     8.  Relevant portions of Paragraph 3 are addressed in  Finding of Fact
Paragraphs 6, 7 and 8.  The balance of Paragraph 8 is rejected as unnecessary
and/or argumentative.



     9.  Relevant portions of Paragraph 9 are addressed in Finding of Fact
Paragraphs 6, 7 and 8.  The balance of Paragraph 9 is rejected as unnecessary
and/or argumentative.
     10.  Since Paragraph 10 is of narrative form, portions of which being
unsupported by the evidence, it is rejected.  The relevant allegations have been
addressed and accepted in Findings of Fact Paragraphs 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14.

COPIES FURNISHED:

Bruce R. Kaster, Esquire
125 N. E. First Avenue, Suite 1
Ocala, Florida  32670

Mrs. Sharon Morand
Post Office Box 4756
Ocala, Florida  32675-4756

Donald A. Griffin
Executive Director
325 John Knott Road
Building F, Suite 240
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1925

=================================================================
                         AGENCY FINAL ORDER
=================================================================

                          STATE OF FLORIDA
                   COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS

SHARON MORAND,
                                      EEOC CASE NO.   n/a
          Petitioner,                 FCHR Case No.   83-3561
                                      DOAH Case No.   86-3521
v.                                    FCHR Order No.  87-018

NATIONAL INDUSTRIES, INC.,

          Respondent.
____________________________/

                    ORDER FINDING AN UNLAWFUL
                      EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE
                AND AWARDING AFFIRMATIVE RELIEF

          I. Panel of Commissioners



     The following three Commissioners participated in the disposition of this
matter:

          Commissioner Robert L. Billingslea,
           Panel Chairperson;
          Commissioner Thomas H. Poole, Sr.; and
          Commissioner Geraldine F. Thompson.

                        II.  Appearances

     No appearance was entered at the commission deliberation by or on behalf of
Petitioner.

     For Respondent, National Industries, Inc.:

          Ralph J. McMurphy, Esquire
          Green, Simmons, Green, Hightower & Gray, P.A.
          123 North East First Avenue, Suite
          Ocala, Florida  32670

                    III.  Preliminary Matters

     Sharon Morand, Petitioner herein, filed a complaint of discrimination with
this Commission pursuant to the Human Rights Act of 1977, as amended, Sections
760.01-760.10, Florida Statutes (1985) alleging that National Industries, Inc.,
Respondent herein, unlawfully discriminated against Petitioner on the basis of
marital status (married).

          In accordance with the Commission's rules, the allegations of
discrimination set forth in the complaint of discrimination were investigated
and a report of said investigation was submitted to the Executive Director.  On
July 7, 1986, the Executive Director issued his Determination finding reasonable
cause to believe that an unlawful employment practice occurred.

     On September 3, 1986, the Petitioner filed a Petition for Relief from an
Unlawful Employment Practice.  The petition was referred to the Division of
Administrative Hearings (DOAH) for the conduct of a formal proceeding pursuant
to Rule 22T-8.016(1).  The formal proceeding was held on April 21, 1987, in
Ocala Florida, before Joyous D. Parrish, DOAH Hearing Officer.  The Hearing
Officer entered a Recommended Order in this matter on May 13, 1987.

     Neither party filed exceptions to the Recommended Order.

     Pursuant to notice, oral argument was held on August 20, 1987, in Orlando,
Florida, before the aforementioned Panel of Commissioners.  After oral argument
was presented, the Panel conducted its deliberation in this matter and
determined the action to be taken upon the petition.

                      IV.  Findings of Fact

     Based upon the testimony of the witnesses and the documentary evidence
received at the hearing, the Hearing Officer made the following findings of
fact:



          1.  Sharon Morand was hired by National
          Industries, Inc. on July 14, 1985, to work
          as an assembly line person in the manufacture
          of doors.

          2.  Petitioner resided approximately six
          blocks from the National Industries plant
          site.

          3.  At he time of the hiring of Petitioner,
          her husband, Robert Morand, was also employed
          by National.

          4.  Robert Morand was employed in an area
          of the plant different from the one in which
          his wife worked.  Robert Morand had been
          employed by National for some time prior to
          March, 1985.

          5.  As a part of his employee benefits Robert
          Morand received a group insurance protection
          plan with an effective date of May 1, 1985.
          This plan indicated Mr. Morand's wife to be
          Sharon Morand.

          6.  National employees made allegations of
          sexual harassment, rudeness, obscene
          language, threats, and potential violence
          against Robert Morand.

          7.  To dispel the trouble National perceived
          Robert Morand to be, Respondent elected to
          offer Robert Morand either voluntary layoff
          or involuntary termination.  It was hoped
          that the elimination of Robert Morand from
          the plant would ease employee concerns.

          8.  On or about August 23, 1985, Robert Morand
          voluntarily agreed to be laid off from his
          employment at National.

          9.  At the time of his layoff, Robert Morand
          was advised not to return to the plant prop-
          erty.  While it is uncertain how many times
          Mr. Morand returned, it is clear he returned
          to the site on at least one occasion between
          August 23 and August 26, 1985.

          10.  On Monday, August 26, 1985, Officer
          Suess of the Ocala Police Department was
          summoned to the National plant site and was
          requested to be present during the termin-
          ation of an employee.  Officer Suess was
          requested to be there because National ex-
          pected some unspecified problem as a result
          of the termination.



          11.  The Petitioner was brought to the
          office in the presence of Officer Suess, Lee
          Rector, and Jack Knight.  Petitioner was
          advised by Rector that her employment was
          being terminated due to her relationship
          with Robert Morand.

          12.  On August 26, 1985, Sharon Morand was a
          probationary employee of the company who
          had performed all of her job duties in an
          acceptable manner.

          13.  At the time of her termination, National
          knew that Sharon Morand was the wife of
          Robert Morand.

          14.  National elected to terminated Petit-
          ioner to eliminate the likelihood that
          Robert Morand would be on or near company
          property.

          15.  At the time of Petitioner's termination
          she was earning $4.05 per hour and working
          a 40 hour week.

          16.  Subsequent to her termination, Petit-
          ioner was employed by Norell Services, Inc.
          While with Norell, she earned a total in
          wages, tips and other compensation of $113.20.

          17.  During 1986, Petitioner was employed by
          UpJohn Health Care Services, Inc., and earned
          a total in wages, tips and other compensation
          of $585.20.

          18.  Petitioner has beer employed by Sears,
          Roebuck and Company since April 14, 1986, and
          has earned a total in wages, tips and other
          compensation in the amount of $3,316.41.

          19.  The total amount of unemployment compen-
          sation Petitioner received subsequent to her
          termination from National was $414.00.

          20.  Petitioner was unable to work due to ill-
          ness or family illness during the period since
          termination from National for a period of
          nine (9) weeks.

          21.  Since Petitioner had not worked for Nat-
          ional for three months prior to her term-
          ination, she was not eligible for any of the
          group insurance benefits afforded a permanent
          employee of the company.  Consequently, lost
          benefits have not been addressed in these
          findings.



     Having considered the Hearing Officer's findings of fact, and being
particularly mindful that the Commission may not reverse such findings without a
complete review of the record and in the absence of either party providing the
Commission with a written transcript of the formal proceedings, the Panel will
not disturb the Hearing Officer's findings of fact.  Section 120.57(1)(b)10,
Fla. Stat. (1986 Supp.); Rule 22T-8.025.  The Hearing Officer's findings of fact
are hereby adopted.

                   V. Analysis and Discussion

     The facts demonstrate that Petitioner was the wife of Mr. Robert Morand
during the time she was employed by Respondent and that Respondent was aware of
their marital relationship.  At the DOAH hearing, Respondent admitted that
although she was a satisfactory employee, Petitioner was terminated due to her
relationship with Robert Morand.  It is the fact that their relationship was a
marital one and, as such protected under the Florida Human Rights Act of 1977,
as amended, that Respondent's action must be found violative of Florida's anti-
discrimination law.

     The Florida Legislature stated its purpose in promulgating the Human Rights
Act of 1977 as securing:

          for all individuals within the state freedom
          from discrimination because of race, color,
          religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap,
          or marital status and thereby protect their
          interest in personal dignity, to make avail-
          able to the state their full productive
          capacities, to secure the state against
          domestic strife and unrest, to preserve the
          public safety, health, and general welfare,
          and to promote the interests, rights, and
          privileges of individuals within the state.
          Section 760.01(2), Florida Statutes.

     Section 760.10(1)(a), Florida Statutes, states that it is an unlawful
employment practice for an employer:

          To discharge or fail or refuse to hire any
          individual, or otherwise to discriminate
          against any individual with respect to com-
          pensation, terms, conditions, or privileges
          of employment, because of such individual's
          ... marital status.

     In Owens v. Upper Pinellas Association for Retarded Citizens, 8 FALR 438
(FCHR September 10, 1985), the Commission interpreted the term "marital status"
broadly to include one's relationship to one's spouse, rather than narrowly to
include only the fact that one is married, single, divorced or widowed.
Therein, the Commission determined that absent legislative intent to the
contrary, such interpretation is consistent with the general purposes of the act
and the legislative mandate for liberal construction.  Subsections 760.01(2) and
(3), Florida Statutes.  Affirmed without opinion:  Upper Pinellas Association
for Retarded Citizens v. Florida Commission on Human Relations, 434 So.2d 754
(Fla. 2d DCA 1986).



     A prima facie case of discrimination can be established in at least three
ways.  First, a petitioner may produce evidence which gives rise to an inference
of discrimination by showing:  (1) S/he was a member of the protected class; (b)
S/he was performing the duties of the position in a satisfactory manner; and (c)
Despite satisfactory performance, s/he was terminated. McDonnell Doualas v.
Green, 411 U.S. 732, 33 S.Ct. 1817 (1973). Second, a petitioner may offer direct
evidence of discriminatory intent.  Third, a prima facie case may be shown
through statistical proof of a pattern of discrimination.  Buckley v. Hospital
Corp. of America, Inc., 758 F.2d 1525 (11th Cir. 1985).

     In the instant case, Petitioner met her burden of proof by establishing a
prima facie case of discrimination by showing that she was married, was
performing her job in a satisfactory manner, and despite her satisfactory
performance, she was discharged.  Thereafter, Respondent conceded that
Petitioner was terminated due to her relationship with Mr. Morand, but that such
action was necessary "to eliminate the likelihood that Robert Morand would be on
or near company property."

     As such, Respondent has admitted to an action which violates Florida law:
Petitioner was terminated based solely on her marital relationship with Robert
Morand.  Nevertheless, Respondent raised an affirmative defense to its
employment decision by stating that Petitioner's termination was necessary to
prevent Mr. Morand from returning to Respondent's property.

     It is well established that the burden of proof is upon the party asserting
the affirmative of an issue before an administrative tribunal.  Irvine v. Duval
County Planning Commission, 466 So.2d 357, 360 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); Florida
Department of Transportation v. J.W.C. Company, Inc., 336 So.2d 778, 788 (Fla.
1st DCA 1981).  Similarly, in Fenesy v. GTE Data Services, Inc., 3 FALR 1764-A
(August 13, 1981), this Commission held that the burden is upon the applicant or
employee to establish that the employer took adverse action against him based
upon a prohibited basis-but that once the discriminatory action has been shown,
the burden is upon the employer to establish an affirmative defense which
justifies its otherwise unlawful action.

     The Hearing Officer made the following findings which relate to
Respondent's affirmative defense:

          National employees made allegations of sexual
          harassment, rudeness, obscene language,
          threats, and potential violence against
          Robert Morand.

          At the time of his layoff, Robert Morand was
          advised not to return to the plant property.
          While it is uncertain how many times Mr.
          Morand returned, it is clear he returned to
          the site on at least one occasion between
          August 23 and August 26, 1985.

          National elected to terminate Petitioner to
          eliminate the likelihood that Robert Morand
          would be on or near company property.

     As the Commission was not provided a copy of the transcript of the DOAH
hearing, the Panel is limited to the Hearing Officer's findings of fact
contained in the Recommended Order.  Based thereon, the Commission concludes



that Respondent has failed as a matter of law to meet its burden regarding its
affirmative defense.  Respondent failed to demonstrate that no alternate course
of action was available and that it could not continue to function safely with
Sharon Morand in its employ.

     In EEOC v. St. Anne's Hospital of Chicago, Inc., 664 F.2d 128 (7th Cir.
1981), the court held that St. Anne's violated Title VII when it terminated
employee Barbara Herzon in retaliation for hiring a black employee.  Ms. Herzon
was the Director of Communications in charge of the security department when she
was terminated from St. Anne's.  On March 1, 1978, she hired the first black
consumer services representative employed by the hospital.  Later that day, the
hospital began receiving bomb threats, several unexplained fires were started,
and one caller stated that he was"....going to fix that bitch Barbara....who
hired that black assistant."  Thereafter, a hospital administrator requested Ms.
Herzon to resign or she would be discharged because it was felt that she was an
irritant to the person or persons making the threats and/or setting the fires.

     Based on these facts, the court determined:

          Section 704(a) was specifically designed to
          encourage employees to act to protect Title
          VII rights, and that is what Herzon has
          assertedly done.  We agree with the Comm-
          ission that Herzon has demonstrated her
          opposition to unlawful discrimination by
          hiring the applicant she considered most
          qualified for the job without regard to his
          race.

          St. Anne's points out, however, that the
          reason for the discharge was the threats and
          not Herzon's hiring decision.

          In our case, the discharge of Herzon is also
          alleged to be for self-protective reasons.
          The issue is whether Title VII permits the
          employer to discharge an employee for
          hiring a black man because the racial animus
          of an anonymous caller threatens the secu-
          rity of the hospital.  It would be a sad day
          for the enforcement of Title VII if
          every unlawful threat of violence motivated
          by racial hate could make lawful the dis-
          charge of an employee for a hiring
          decision that was itself required by the Act.

                          *     *     *

          At the same time, neither we nor the employer
          can ignore a possible risk to the lives of
          innocent persons.

                          *     *     *

          The discharge of Herzon for being an irritant
          to the treatening caller was lawful under
          Title VII only if the hospital demonstrates



          that no alternative course of action
          was available and that it could not continue
          to function safely with Herzon in its employ.
          Otherwise, the discharge of Herzon, assuming
          that the facts are as the Commission has
          alleged, was discriminatory and in violation
          of section 704(a) of the Act.  At this stag
          of the proceedings, we see no reason to assume
          that St. Anne's could not have enlisted
          adequate police protection and investigation
          to alleviate the threat without discharging
          Herzon.

St. Anne's Hospital, at 133-134.  Footnote ommitted.

     As the case above demonstrates, the fact that Petitioner may be the
irritant and/or attractant to the person or persons wishing to do harm to
Respondent is not sufficient, without more, to support an unlawful termination.
Concerns for safety, while legitimate, cannot justify the unlawful discharge of
a protected status employee unless the employer shows that no less
discriminatory alternative course of action was available and that the continued
safe functioning of Respondent's business necessitated Petitioner's termination.
Since Petitioner met her burden of proof in establishing her prima facie case
and Respondent did not meet its burden regarding its affirmative defense,
Petitioner prevails in her discrimination claim.  Maggio v. Martin Marietta
Aerospace, 9 FALR 2168 (FCHR January 5, 1986).

                     VI.  Conclusions of Law

     Based on the foregoing discussion, the Hearing Officer's conclusions of law
and analysis contained therein are rejected as erroneous.  Section
120.57(1)(b)10., Florida Statutes (1986 Supp.).  The Commission makes the
following conclusions of law:

     1.  Sharon Morand is a person within the meaning of Section 760.02(5),
Florida Statutes.

     2.  National Industries, Incorporated, is an employer within the meaning of
Section 760.02(6), Florida Statutes.

     3.  By terminating the employment of Sharon Morand due to her relationship
with Robert Morand, National Industries violated Section 760.10(1)(a) in that
her relationship was a marital relationship protected by the act.

     4.  Sharon Morand is a person aggrieved by a violation of Section
760.10(1)(a), Florida Statutes, within the meaning of Section 760.10(10),
Florida Statutes.

     5.  Sharon Morand is entitled to affirmative relief as provided by Section
760.10(13), Florida Statutes.

     It is therefore ORDERED:

     1.  That National Industries, Incorporated, cease and desist from
discriminating against Sharon Morand on the basis of her marital status;



     2.  That National Industries, Incorporated, offer to reinstate Sharon
Morand to her former or substantially equivalent position;

     3.  That National Industries, Incorporated, pay Sharon Morand back wages in
the amount of $8,974.32 (see Appendix for breakdown of award calculation).

     4.  That National Industries, Incorporated, notify the Commission in
writing within 20 calendar days of the date of filing of this Order, of the
steps that have been taken to comply with this Order.

     The parties are advised of their right to petition the Florida District
Court of Appeal for review of this Order within 30 days of the date that this
Order is filed with the Clerk of the Commission.  Section 120.68, Fla. Stat.;
Fla. R. App. P. 3.110(b).

     It is so ORDERED.

     Dated this 30th day of September, 1987.

     FOR THE FLORIDA COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS;

                         BY_________________________________
                           Commissioner Robert L. Billingslea,
                             Panel Chairperson;
                           Commissioner Thomas H. Poole, Sr.; and
                           Commissioner Geraldine F. Thompson.

     FILED this 6th day of October, 1987, in Tallahassee, Florida.

                            _________________________________
                            Sherry B. Rice
                            Clerk of the Commission

                             ENDNOTES

1/  Unless otherwise indicated, all statutory references are to Florida Statutes
(1383), and all rule references are to Florida Administrative Code.

2/  Section 760.01(3), Florida Statutes, provides:
          (3) Sections 760.01-760.10 shall be con-
          strued according to the fair import of its
          terms and shall be liberally construed to
          further the general purposes stated in this
          section and the special purposes of the
          particular provision involved.

3/  42 U.S.C. Section 2000e-3(a); Section 704(a) of Title VII.

4/  Commissioner Billingslea did not vote to award Petitioner back pay.



         APPENDIX TO RECOMMENDED ORDER, CASE NO. 86-3521

                  I. Hearing Officer's Findings

1.  Petitioner's employment was terminated on Monday, August 26, 1986;
2.  Petitioner worked 40 hours per week and was paid $4.05 per hour during her
employment with Respondent (40 x $4.05 = $162.00 per week);
3.  Subsequent to her termination, Petitioner received:

         $ 414.00 in unemployment compensation
         $ 113.20 from employment with Norell Services, Inc.
         $ 585.20 from employment with UpJohn Health Care
                  Services, Inc.
         $3,316.41 from employment with Sears, Roebuck and
                   Company
         _________
         $4,428.81 TOTAL

4.  Petitioner was unable to work for a period of nine weeks due to personal or
family illness (9 x $162.00 = $1458.00);

     II.  Wages Petitioner Would Have Earned From Respondent

During period of August 26, 1985 - August 26, 1986:

          $162.00 x 52 = $8424.00

During period of August 26, 1986 - April 21, 1987:

          $162.00 x 33.8 = $5475.60

                       III.  Calculations

          8,424.00         1985-1986 wages
        + 5,475.60         1986-1987 wages
         _________
         13,899.60         TOTAL
        - 4.428.81         Wages and/or other compensation earned
         _________
          9,470.79
         -1,458.00         Period unable to work
          ________
          8,012.79
         +  961.53         12 percent simple interest
         _________
        $ 8,974.32         TOTAL BACK PAY AWARD
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